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DESCRIPTION

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED __UNALTERED X ORIGINAL SITE
XGooD __RUINS X _ALTERED __MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Located in south central Texas about 50 miles west of Houston is
Columbus, a small community of about 3600 people. One of the oldest
towns™ ‘in Texas, Columbus serves:.as the county seat of Colorado County
and contains a wealth of Greek Revival and Victorian architecture.
Dominating the historic town is the Colorado County Courthouse which
stands in the center of the courthouse square surrounded on three
sides by predominantly Victorian commercial structures and on the
fourth side by residences.

Designed in 1890 by the well-known architect Eugene T. Heiner from
Houston, the 19th century, three-story, brick courthouse represented
the typical late 19th century imposing Victorian public structure.
Martin, Byrne and Johnston, builders of numerous Texas courthouses,
were the contracggrg. The Greek cross plan of the building withhone
entrance on the , west, and south and two entrances on the
differs slightly from the typical plans of the period. The original
building contained a hipped roof with cresting over each of the
dominant masses and a small pediment over the central entrance bay.
Rising from the center of the roof was a tall clock tower with a
truncated hipped roof and corner bartizans surrounding the clock face.
In 1909 a tornado destroyed the tower and much of the roof. Sub-
sequent remodeling retained the original three floors, but changed
the roof and tower.

The present building contains the original three floors and orna-
mentation. Each facade contains a projecting wing with a central pro-
jecting bay. The corners of the smooth brick wall surfaces are accented
with large rusticated cut stones. A variety of window sizes are
ornamented generally by stilted segmental arches on the first two
floors and round arched openings on the third floor. Across the
facade, the tall two-story windows express the two-story space of the
district courtroom. Marking the first floor level is a raised, smooth
stone water table at floor level and rusticated limestone beltcourse

at sill level. Decorative beltcourses on the second floor match the
ones on the first floor, while a single rusticated beltcourse defines
the third floor. Vertical interest is expressed by the coupled inset
panels visually joining the first and second floor windows, while

single recessed panels link the second and third floor openings. Brick
pilasters, beginning at the second floor beltcourse, frame this vertical
expression terminating with the arch above the third floor window.
Finally, each projecting pavilion contains a dentilled cornice, frieze
and wide pedimented gable across the entire wing. The dentils of the
pediment accentuate the classical feature. Rising from the central mass
over the courtroom is a copper dome resting on a square drum. One-story

e KA rowth
additions have been added at the ég;eﬁééét & southeast corners.
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—_INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 1890-91 BUILDER/ARCHITECT Eugene T. Heiner

i STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Colorado County Courthouse forms the nucleus of the Columbus town
square which is surrounded by commercial structures on three sides and
residences on the east. The courthouse square represents a typical
small Texas town plan with the courthouse as the dominating visual feature.
In addition to the Victorian commercial structures around the courthouse
there are a number of Victorian homes within several blocks of the town
center, “Displaying a combination of Victorian and Classical Revival
features, the courthouse also serves as a symbol of Colorado County's

interesting historical development.

The site of Colorado County was one of the first areas settled by
empresario Stephen F. Austin. In August, 1823, Stephen F. Austin, the
Baron de Bastrop, a surveyor, and some Negro slaves surveyed 170 acres

on the Colorado River 8 miles above the Atascosito crossing. This
present site of Columbus was to be the capital and headquarters for the
Austin Colony. But the site was abandoned and another location selected
| on the Brazos River.

When Sam Houston's army retreated from Gonzoles in 1836 after the fall
of the Alamo in the Texas War for Independence, it camped on the east
bank of the Colorado River near the site of Columbus. Here Houston's
army began to drill and train his army until he learned of the massacre
at Goliad. The news created havoc among the Anglo settlers and in
retreat Houston's army burned the buildings at Columbus.

One of the original counties of the Republic of Texas, Colorado County
was created in 1836 and organized in 1837. Since General Houston had
burned all of Columbus' buildings, the first district court was held
under a live oak tree and presided over by Robert M. Williamson in
April 1837. The tree still stands to the east of the present courthouse
in the center of a bordering street. Four courthouses preeeded

the present courthouse which was built in 1890-91. Although Columbus
had grown rapidly following the Civil War, the 1880's and 1890's brought
important changes to the town. The courthouse square began to flourish
with new business structures, including the 1886 Stafford Opera House

at the southwest corner of the square. Built by millionaire cattleman
and banker, R. E. Stafford, the Opera House became the center of social
and cultural activities in the area. (See National Register submission,
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Colorado County Courthouse
Columbus, Colorado County, Texas

Texas Historical Commission, 7-20-70
Texas Historical Commission

Northwest oblique
Photo #1 o% /71
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Colorado County Courthouse
Columbus, Colorado County, Texas

Texas Historical Commission, 7-20-70
Texas Historical Commission

Northeast oblique
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colorado Ccounty courthouse
Columbus, Colorado county, Texas

Texas Historical Commission, 7-20-70
Texas Historical commission
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Colorado County Courthouse
Columbus, Colorado County, Texas

Texas Historical Commission, 7-20-70
Texas Historical Commission

Detail at southwest corner of building.
The tall two-story windows express
the two-story Space of the district

court room.
Photo # 4 07(71
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Texas Historical Commission
Box 12276, Capitol Station
Austin, Texas 78711

Truett Latimer
Executive Director

National Register Dept.
Washington, D.C.

Photos for the nomination of the Colorado County Court-
house, Columbus, Texas,will be mailed as soon as possible.

Joe R. Williams
Director, National
Register Dept.
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TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION
P. 0. BOX 12276 CAPITOL STATION AUSTIN, TEXAS 78711

TRUETT LATIMER
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

May 20, 1976

National Register of Historic Places
Department of the Interior

National Park Service

18th and C Streets, N. W.
Washington, D. C. 20240

To Whom It May Concern:

Enclosed are four photographs of the Colorado County Courthouse

in Colorado County that was recently submitted to the National
Register. On viewing the property last week, I discovered that

the directions indicated in item #7 of the nomination are

incorrect and I am sending a copy of that page with the corrections.

Marie D. Landon
Historian, National Register
Programs for Texas

MDL/s
Enclosures
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H34-880 JUN 3 0 1977

P
ol
Mrs. Geraldine Tovmsend Rhime \,,v“o
6415 Homey Hill Co
San Antonio, Texas 78229

Dear Mrs. Rhine: R

Mmmmwmmmmdm

Capitol Station, Austin, Texas 78711. 1If the property is accepted
for listing in the National Register, notice will be placed in the
Register.” If additional information is needed to complete
evaluation, or if it is determined that the property does not
the Natiomal Register criteris for evaluation (section 60.6 of
60), the nomination will be returned to the State with

Sincerely yours,
Charles A. Herrington (Sgd.)
Lok
Willism J. Murtagh
Keeper of the National Register

ece: Mr. Truett Latimer, Texas SHPO w/cy inc
FNP:JKulczycki :cam:6/25/77
bec: Regional Director, Southwest Region w/cy inc
Director's Reading File
880
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ENTRIES IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER

STATE TEXAS

 1° 1975
£l oL

Date Entered

Name

Trost, Henry C., Youse
Kohl, Ernst Martin, Building
{gplorado County Courthouse

Austin "Moonlight 'l‘bwers"

Location

¥l Paso
El Paso County

Denison
Grayson County

Columbus
Colorado County

Austin
Travis County

San Antonio Loan and Trust Building San Antonio

Bexar County
Clarksville Historic District Austin

Travis County

Also Notified

Hon. John G. Tower State Historic Preservation Officer
Hon. Lloyd M. Bentsem Mr. Truett Latimer
Hon., Richard C. Vhite Executive Director
Hon. Ray Roberts Texas Historical Commission
Hon. J. J. (Jake) Pickle P.0. Box 12276, Capitol Station
Hon. llenry B. Gonzalez Austin, Texas 78711

Regional Director, Southwest
Region

! PR MMott/row 7/14/76

INT: 208073
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